
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Personnel Committee 
 
 

Date: Wednesday, 26 June 2019 

Time: 10.10 am (or at the rise of the Executive) 
Venue: Council Antechamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting. 
 

 
 

Access to the Council Antechamber 
 

Public access to the Council Antechamber is on Level 2 of the Town Hall Extension, 
using the lift or stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension. That 
lobby can also be reached from the St. Peter’s Square entrance and from Library 
Walk. There is no public access from the Lloyd Street entrances of the 
Extension. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership of the Personnel Committee 

Councillors - Ollerhead (Chair), Akbar, Bridges, Craig, Leech, Leese, N Murphy, 
S Murphy, Rahman, Richards, Sheikh and Stogia 

Public Document Pack



Personnel Committee 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record 
 

 
5 - 6 

5.   Living Wage Accreditation 
The report of the City Treasurer (Deputy Chief Executive) is 
enclosed 
 

 
7 - 16 

6.   Corporate Core: Senior Management Capacity 
The report of the Chief Executive will follow 
 

 

7.   Strategic Development: Senior Management Capacity 
The report of the Chief Executive will follow 
 

 

8.   Neighbourhoods Directorate: Senior Management Capacity 
The report of the Chief Executive will follow 
 

 



Personnel Committee 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

The Personnel Committee is made up of the Leader of the Council, the other nine 
Members of the Executive, the Assistant Executive Member (Finance and Human 
Resources), and the Leader of the Opposition.  
 
Amongst its responsibilities, the Personnel Committee considers department staffing 
and organisational reviews; determines collective and corporate terms and conditions 
of staff and ‘market rate’ supplements. The Committee also determines the 
assignment and re-grading of certain posts and policies relating to local government 
pensions. 
 
The Council is concerned to ensure that its meetings are as open as possible and 
confidential business is kept to the strict minimum. When confidential items are 
involved these are considered at the end of the meeting at which point members of 
the public are asked to leave. 
 
The Council welcomes the filming, recording, public broadcast and use of social 
media to report on the Committee’s meetings by members of the public. 
Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council Committees can be found on the 
Council’s website www.manchester.gov.uk.  
 
Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Level 3, Town Hall Extension, 
Albert Square, 
Manchester, M60 2LA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 
 Donna Barnes 
 Tel: 0161 234 3037 
 Email: d.barnes@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 18 June 2019 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 3, Town Hall Extension (Mount Street 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Personnel Committee 13 March 2019 

 

Personnel Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 13 March 2019 
 
Present: Councillor Ollerhead (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges Craig, Leech, N Murphy, Rahman, Richards and Stogia 
 
Apologies: Councillors Leese and S Murphy  
 
PE/19/10 Minutes  
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2019 as a correct record. 
 

 PE/19/11 Pay Policy Statement 2019/20  
 
The Committee considered the annual update of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer on the organisations Pay Policy Statement for 2019/20 prior to its 
submission to full Council.  The Head of Workforce Strategy advised the Committee 
that the statement was broadly in line with previous years and included a statement 
on pay and grading structure as well as information on the Council’s ‘Gender Pay 
Gap’. 
 
There was a discussion about the gender pay gap – a member asked how the 
Authority compared with other public sector organisations.  It was explained that not 
all organisations had published their information but based on last year’s data the 
authority was broadly in line with other NHS organisations. 
 
There was also a discussion about the role of third party contractors.  The Deputy 
Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that whilst the requirements that 
govern the production of pay policy statements do not apply to third party contractors, 
the Authority’s commitment to high standards of ethical trade practices, across 
commissioning and procurement activities, as well as salaries that are commensurate 
with a ‘real living wage’, were assured through the organisations ethical procurement 
policy. 
 
No Trade Union comments were submitted for consideration for this item.  The 
Committee endorsed the recommendations. 
  
Decisions  
 
1. To note the content of the draft Pay Policy Statement and commend it for 

approval by the Council. 
 

2. To note the organisation’s Pay and Grading Structure for the financial year 
2019/20 appended to the Pay Policy Statement and commend it for approval by 
the Council. 

 

Page 5

Item 4



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Personnel Committee 13 March 2019 

 

PE/19/12 Director of ICT 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which discussed recruitment arrangements in light of the recent resignation of the 
current Director of ICT. 
 
Comments from the Trade Union UNISON were submitted for consideration – these 
essentially centred around the recognition of the strong leadership and management 
qualities of the current postholder.  Some concern about the potential financial impact 
of recruiting interims and / or consultants was raised as well as the potential for 
destabilisation of services that are currently working well. 
 
The Committee recognised the significant progress achieved in relation to 
infrastructure, transformation of technology, the workforce and delivery of the Capital 
Programme and was asked to recommend to Council that the post of Director of ICT 
be recruited to at Grade SS4 (£94,072 - £103,863 increasing to £95,953 - £105,940 
from 1 April 2019) with an additional market rate supplement of up to £30,000, 
subject to the stipulated review processes after 18 months. 
 
The Committee subsequently put on record its thanks to the current post holder and 
endorsed the proposal to recruit a new Director of ICT with the appropriate level of 
experience, knowledge and understanding of the Council’s ICT functions that will 
ensure continuity, stability whilst maintaining a focus on service improvements. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note the resignation of the Director of ICT with effect from 8 February 2019; 
 
2. To thank Bob Brown for his leadership and transformation of the ICT service  

since joining the Authority in 2015 
 
3. To recommend that Council approves the post of Director of ICT be recruited 

to at Grade SS4 (£94,072 - £103,863) increasing to £95,953 - £105,940 from 1 
April 2019 with an additional market rate supplement of up to £30,000, subject 
to the stipulated review processes after 18 months. 

Page 6

Item 4



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to: Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee - 18 June 2019 

Executive - 26 June 2019 
 Personnel Committee - 26 June 2019 
  
Subject: Living Wage Accreditation 
  
Report of: City Treasurer (Deputy Chief Executive) 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides an update on the report to Resources and Governance 
Committee in January 2019 regarding the Living Wage and the work that has been 
undertaken to assess the implications for the Council in considering potential 
accreditation as a Living Wage Employer.  A detailed analysis of the Council’s 
procurement and commissioning arrangements has been undertaken to support a 
successful application to the Living Wage Foundation to become accredited.  Work 
has also been undertaken to understand the potential implications, financial and 
otherwise, of accreditation. The views of the Committee are being sought in advance 
of a formal decision to progress with accreditation via the Council’s Executive and 
Council.  
 
Recommendations 
 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee are asked to note and comment on 
this report which seeks approval for the Council to apply for accreditation as a living 
wage employer with the Living Wage Foundation. 
 
The Personnel Committee and the Executive each recommend to the Council that 
Manchester City Council applies for accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation.  
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
Alignment to the Our Manchester Strategy Outcomes (if applicable) 
 

Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to 
the Our Manchester Strategy 

A thriving and sustainable city: supporting a 
diverse and distinctive economy that creates 
jobs and opportunities 

Accreditation as a Living Wage 
Employer and promotion of the real 
Living Wage to partners and suppliers 
across the city will support various 
strands of the Our Manchester strategy. 
In particular, this will support the 
development of a truly progressive and 
equitable city where lower paid 

A highly skilled city: world class and home 
grown talent sustaining the city’s economic 
success 

A progressive and equitable city: making a 
positive contribution by unlocking the potential 

Page 7

Item 5



of our communities residents and workers receive improved 
pay to ensure they are able to benefit 
from the city’s economic success. A liveable and low carbon city: a destination of 

choice to live, visit, work 

A connected city: world class infrastructure and 
connectivity to drive growth 

 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Janice Gotts 
Position: Deputy City Treasurer 
Telephone: 0161 234 1017  
E-mail:  j.gotts@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Peter Schofield 
Position: Head of Corporate Procurement and Integrated Commissioning 
Telephone: 0161 234 3265 
E-mail:  p.schofield@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Paul Murphy 
Position: Group Manager, Corporate Procurement 
Telephone: 0161 234 3591 
E-mail: p.murphy@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Samuel McVaigh 
Position: Head of Workforce Strategy 
Telephone: 0161 234 3976 
E-mail:  s.mcvaigh@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  David Houliston 
Position: Strategic Lead Policy and Partnerships  
Telephone: 0161 234 1541 
E-mail:  d.houliston@manchester.gov.uk 
 

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and 
have been relied upon in preparing the report.  Copies of the background documents 
are available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting.  If you would like a copy 
please contact one of the contact officers above. 
 

Report to Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee, 10 January 2019: Living 

Wage Accreditation Update 

 

Report to Economy Scrutiny Committee, 11 March 2015: Final Report and 

Recommendations of the Living Wage Task and Finish Group 

 

Page 8

Item 5



Report to Economy Scrutiny Committee, 30 September 2015: Draft Living Wage 

Policy  

 

Manchester City Council Ethical Procurement Policy 

 
  

Page 9

Item 5



 

 1. Background and Context 

 

 1.1. Resources and Governance Committee received a report in January 2019 
setting out the progress that has been made since the development of the 
Council’s Living Wage Policy in 2015 and the potential implications of becoming 
an accredited Living Wage employer.  Since that report, a Living Wage 
Accreditation Working Group has been established comprising officers from 
Finance, Human Resources and Organisational Development, Procurement and 
Commissioning, Communications, Legal Services and Policy.  The group have 
liaised with the Living Wage Foundation to gain a fuller understanding of the 
process and have produced a Living Wage Implementation Plan to guide the 
preparation work. 

 
 1.2. The calculation of the UK (‘real’) Living Wage is undertaken by the Resolution 

Foundation (within the auspices of the Living wage Foundation) who have 
developed a methodology which includes: the costs of a core basket of goods 
and services; housing costs; Council Tax; travel costs; and childcare costs. The 
rate is reviewed annually each November, with a current rate of £9 an hour 
outside of London. 

 
 1.3. A range of local authorities have now achieved formal accreditation as ‘living 

wage employers’. In order to achieve this  accreditation employers must:  
 

● Pay all directly employed staff the ‘real’ Living Wage  
● Pay regular third party contracted staff - such as cleaners and catering staff - 

the ‘real’ Living Wage.  However, if it is not possible to move to the ‘real’ 
Living Wage straight away, this can be implemented in a phased approach 
by moving the contracts to Living Wage when possible. Each contract is 
included as a milestone in the Licence Agreement with the City Council.   

 
 1.4. This report summarises the recent work that has been completed to prepare the 

organisation for potential Living Wage accreditation and sets out the implications 
of accreditation in relation to workforce and budgets, procurement and 
commissioning and communications. Discussions are also taking place with 
Manchester Health and Care Commissioning (MHCC). 

 

 2. Manchester City Council as an employer 

 

 2.1. The nationally agreed 2019/20 pay award, implementation of which was 
endorsed by the Personnel Committee on 12th December 2018, has taken the 
minimum rate of pay for directly employed staff to £9.51 per hour1 from 1st April 
2019.  This falls significantly above the current real Living Wage rate (£9 per 
hour, as announced in November 2018) and the statutory National Living Wage 
of £8.21 per hour from April 2019 which was announced by the Chancellor as 
part of the Autumn Budget 2018.  The City Council’s hourly minimum has been 
applied to agency staff and the agreed pay scale commended to schools across 
the city.  The costs of implementing the pay award were factored into the 
Council’s 2019/20 budget. 

 
                                                
1 Based on a 35 hour week. 

Page 10

Item 5



 2.2. Becoming Living Wage accredited requires the Council to ensure that its 
minimum rate of pay is at least equivalent to real Living Wage rate. The new rate 
is announced every November and accredited organisations have until 1st April 
the following year to implement the increases.  This timescale is in line with 
existing processes and the Personnel Committee and Council would need to 
approve this as part of the annual Pay Award and associated Pay Policy 
Statement.  Financial modelling of future rates of the real Living Wage have 
been undertaken, but it is impossible to predict the exact rate until it is revealed 
in November.  For this reason, becoming accredited would create a degree of 
uncertainty about the overall increases in staff budgets beyond 2019/20 and 
whether this would remain in line with existing predictions. As noted above, the 
current minimum rate of pay is 51p above the Living Wage rate.  

 
 2.3. The Council is currently able to demonstrate that it is paying the real Living 

Wage to all directly employed staff and has a robust approval process in place to 
apply the increase on an annual basis ahead of the 1st April deadline. 

 
 3. Manchester City Council as a procurer and commissioner 

 

 3.1. Through its procurement policies and procedures the Council has been 
commending payment of the Manchester Living Wage (currently £9.00 per hour - 
the same rate as the real Living Wage) to its contractors and suppliers since 
2016 and this is referenced in the Council’s Ethical Procurement Policy.  This 
means that the Council already has data to support the accreditation process. In 
addition, the Council has worked with the Centre for Local Economic Strategies 
(CLES) for over a decade on their ‘Power of Procurement: towards Progressive 
Procurement’ reports and an annual survey of the top 300 suppliers which now 
includes questions about the payment of the real Living Wage. 

 
 3.2. As referred to in the January report to Resources and Governance Committee, 

whilst the approach is intended to support a decent standard of living for 
individuals and their families, it recognises that paying the real Living Wage can 
be good for businesses as well and contribute towards a thriving community.  
There is a growing body of evidence demonstrating the business benefits of 
becoming a Living Wage employer.  These are reported by the Living Wage 
Foundation and include increased retention and motivation of staff; 
improvements in recruitment and employee relations, and improvement in the 
wellbeing of individuals, as well as having a positive impact on an organisation’s 
reputation. 

 
 3.3. A full review of contracts has been undertaken by the Living Wage Working 

Group to ascertain how many of the Council’s contractors have committed to 
paying the real Living Wage.  

 
 3.4. The analysis of the City Council’s contracts has been broken down into: 

 

i. Contracts that are already paying the Manchester Living Wage; 

ii. Future commitment to the Manchester Living Wage. 

 

 3.5. Overall the value of the City Council’s contracts, including framework 
arrangements, total around £0.5bn, the majority (c£0.3bn) are contracts where 

Page 11

Item 5



the suppliers committed to paying the Manchester Living Wage as part of their 
tender and fall into category (i) above.  

 
 3.6. Contracts included within the category of “future commitments to the Manchester 

Living Wage” include new requirements that have not been put to the market 
before and contracts that were let before Manchester Living Wage response was 
part of the tender process.  The details of these contracts are currently being 
finalised and there may be some that will be compliant on further investigation.  

 
 3.7. For completeness, the City Council has also provided a list of payments which 

are considered out of scope and includes allowances for foster care and 
adoption, services provided under grant (which are not part of procurement 
processes) and allowances to individuals for personal budgets. 

 
 3.8. In line with the requirements of accreditation, a clear plan will be put into place to 

review the contracts which are categorised as a future commitment to the Living 
Wage and these will be addressed on an ongoing basis as they become due for 
renewal. 

 
 3.9. The Living Wage Foundation are fully aware of some of the challenges that 

certain sectors, particularly Social Care related services, are facing and the 
funding pressures on local authorities. They are committed to working with local 
authorities in a pragmatic way for these arrangements as they come up for 
renewal or review.  The Council already sets aside funding to meet requirements 
of increases in the National Living Wage.  However, it is estimated that for 
Manchester’s residential and nursing care contracts there may be a requirement 
for further employer spending of around £3m to take all staff to the level of the 
real Living Wage.   

 
 3.10. The feedback to date from the Living Wage Foundation has been positive and 

there is a good working relationship with the Foundation who will support the City 
Council through the process.  

 

 4. Manchester City Council as an influencer  

 

 4.1. Accreditation as a Living Wage employer and promotion of the real Living Wage 
to partners and suppliers across the city will support various strands of the Our 
Manchester Strategy. In particular it will support the development of a 
‘Progressive and Equitable’ city where residents benefit from our economic 
success. The Our Manchester Strategy contains a specific high level ambition to 
“Ensure everybody is paid at least a real living wage”. 

 

 4.2. The Council would be joining a number of other high profile employers in the city 
and city region, including the University of Manchester who recently became the 
500th Living Wage accredited organisation. 

 
 4.3. The Greater Manchester Living Wage Campaign is a local campaigning 

organisation which aims to create a ‘Living Wage Zone’ in Greater Manchester. 
The Campaign is part of Greater Manchester Poverty Action (GMPA) which is a 
not-for-profit organisation that works to address poverty across the city region. 
The Council works closely with GMPA on the implementation of the Manchester 
Family Poverty Strategy and is one of their ‘Principal Partners’.  

Page 12

Item 5



 
 4.4. There will be an opportunity for the Council to promote the standard during 

Living Wage week in November 2019 during which the new rate will be 
announced. The Living Wage Foundation logo and branding can also be used on 
digital and hard copy communication materials.  

 
 4.5. A plan will be developed to raise awareness of, and celebrate, the accreditation 

amongst a wide range of audiences including: staff; residents; suppliers and 
employers. 

 
 4.6. Consideration of a supplier's payment of the living wage is embedded within the 

Council's procurement processes and a proactive approach will continue to be 
taken to commend suppliers and contractors to pay the Living Wage.  This will 
be taken into account as part of the assessment of Social Value within the 
tendering process.  The City Council will use its influence, where possible, to 
recommend that other Manchester organisations, partners and organisations 
implement Living Wage policies and commit to becoming Living Wage 
employers. 

 
 5. Conclusion 

 
 5.1. Accreditation as a Living Wage Employer would be a positive next step flowing 

from the development of the Council’s Living Wage Policy in 2015.  As an 
accredited employer, the Council would have increased credibility in 
commending this rate of pay to its partners across the city which would support 
the aims of the Living Wage Foundation and the Our Manchester Strategy. 

 
 5.2. Work over recent years and the evidence gathered during the past few months 

has shown that the Council is in a strong position to successfully meet the initial 
accreditation threshold. Although there is no immediate cost to accreditation, 
there are some potential medium and long term financial considerations, both in 
terms of continuing to assure this rate of pay to directly employed staff and, in 
some cases, reflecting the impact on commissioning budgets to enable the real 
Living Wage rate to be paid.   

 
 5.3. The Council will need to be prepared to mitigate the risks associated with these 

challenges and will need to work with contractors to identify how they can be 
compliant but without passing additional costs onto the Council. Where cost 
does pose a significant barrier to compliance, the Living Wage Foundation will 
work with us to develop a pragmatic way forward. 

 
 6. Recommendations 

 
 6.1. The recommendations appear at the front of this report. 

Page 13

Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix - Minimum Wage Rates 

Pay Rate 
Definition of 

Cohort 

 

Hourly Pay 

(2019/20) 
Review Approach 

 

Apprentice Rate 
(20-19/20) 

National 

Minimum Wage 

(Statutory) 

Workers aged 
21 and over 

 
£7.70 

Recommended by the Low 
Pay Commission within a 
remit to raise pay as high as 
possible without damaging 
employment prospects.  

 

£3.901 
Workers aged 
18 to 20 

 
£6.15 

Workers under 
the age of 18 

 
£4.35 

National Living 

Wage 

(Statutory) 

Workers over 

25 

 

£8.21 

Recommended by the Low 
Pay Commission.  The 
Government has set a target 
for it to reach 60 per cent of 
median earnings by 2020. 
The Commission’s remit is to 
make recommendations that 
reach the target, subject to 
‘sustained economic growth’. 

 

N/A 

‘Real’ Living 

Wage (Living 

Wage 

Foundation)2 

All workers (a 

higher rate is 

applicable for 

London)  

£9.00 

(announced 

November 2018) 

 
This is an aspirational wage 
which is announced every 
November by the Living 
Wage Foundation. The ‘real’ 
Living Wage is a voluntary 
rate of pay set by the 
resolution foundation based 
on the real cost of living; what 
people need to meet their 
basic everyday needs. 

 
N/A 

Manchester 

Living Wage3 

(Local) 

Commended 
via contracts 
and to partners   

 
£9.00 

 
(as of April 2019) 

Reviewed annually, taking 
account of various factors 
such as staff turnover, any 
NJC pay award, the ratio of 
low to high earners, the rates 
for the National Minimum 
Wage and the ‘real’ Living 
Wage at the time. 

 
£9.00 

Lowest pay for 

directly 

employed staff  

All directly 
employed staff, 
agency staff 
and 
commended to 
schools   

£9.514 £9.51 

 

                                                
1 Applicable to apprentices aged 16 to 18 and those aged 19 and over who are in their first year. All 
other apprentices are entitled to the National Minimum Wage for their age. 
2 The rate is set each November with organisations allowed 6 months to comply. The current ‘real’ 

Living Wage rate of £9.00 was announced in November 2018.  
3 Previously known as the Manchester Minimum Wage - this will be at least equivalent to the real 

Living Wage of £9. 
4 51p greater than the Manchester Living Wage / Foundation Living Wage reflective of nationally 
agreed NJC pay award. 

Page 15

Item 5Appendix 1,



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Living Wage Accreditation
	5.1 Living Wage Appendix


